
 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 
 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

February 10, 2016 
3:00 P.M.  

1055 Ventura Avenue 
Oak View, CA 93022 

 
Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 
4. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 

 
5. Consent Agenda 
 
 a. Minutes of January 27, 2016 Board Meeting. 

b.  Recommend approval of a purchase order to Roy Allan Slurry Seal, 
Inc. in the amount of $30,625.00 for Lake Casitas Recreation Area 
Roads Maintenance, Specification 15-384.  

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 
6. Bills 
 
7. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Water Works Engineers in 

the amount of $92,161.00 for Engineering Services for the High Pressure 
Portion of Rincon Main Condition Assessment and Conceptual Design. 

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 



 2 

 
8. Recommend consideration of the request of Bruce W. Hull & Associates, 

Inc. for a change order in the amount of $25,000 for the Appraisal Report 
for the potential Golden State Water Company acquisition. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
9. Recommend authorizing the General Manager to sign the questionnaire 

letter to the Los Angeles 2024 Olympic Exploratory Committee. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
10. Information Items: 
 

a. Recreation Committee Minutes. 
b. Water Resources Committee Minutes. 
c. Recreation Area Report for November 2015 
d. Recreation Area Report for December 2015 
e. Water Consumption Report. 
f. CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Cost Analysis. 
g. Investment Report. 
 

11. Closed Session 
 

a. Conference with Legal Counsel -- Anticipated Litigation  
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 
54956.9, Government Code. (number of potential cases: two)  

 
b. (Govt. Code Sec. 54957.6) 

Conference with Labor Negotiators:    
Agency Designated Representatives:  Rebekah Vieira 
Employee Organization: Supervisory & Professional, General Unit and 
Recreation Unit.  
 

12. Adjournment  
 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this meeting, 
please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext.  113.  (Govt. Code 
Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 



 1 

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 
January 27, 2016 

 
 A meeting of the Board of Directors was held January 27, 2016 at the District 
office in Oak View, California. The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. 
Directors Baggerly, Word, Hicks and Bergen were present. Director Kaiser was 
absent.  Also present were Steve Wickstrum, General Manager, Rebekah Vieira, 
Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, John Mathews.  There were two staff members 
and two members of the public in attendance.  Vice President Baggerly led the 
group in the flag salute. 

 
1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
 

None 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 

Mr. Wickstrum explained he is working with an attorney for the LA 2024 
documentation that is to be submitted and there are some issues regarding 
guarantees which we could not guarantee such as having a full lake.  We are 
working through this and hope to bring a letter to the board on February 10th for 
consideration to move forward. 
 

Mr. Wickstrum then discussed the Stakeholder meeting for the Upper 
Ventura River GSA to hear input.  The presentation is at the Oak View 
Community Center from 6:00 – 8:30.  Directors Bergen and Baggerly may attend. 
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 

Director Bergen questioned the status of a consultant review of policies for 
the Park Services Officers.  Mr. Wickstrum stated there is a meeting scheduled 
for next week and we hope to bring something forward to an upcoming board 
meeting.  Mr. Mathews added we had a good conversation yesterday. 
 
4. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 
 

None 
 
5. Consent Agenda       ADOPTED 
 
 a. Minutes of January 9, 2016 Board Workshop. 

b. Minutes of the January 13, 2016 Board Meeting.  
 
 The Consent Agenda was offered by Director Hicks, seconded by Director 
Word and approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: Kaiser 



 2 

 
6. Bills         APPROVED 
 
 Director Hicks questioned the purchase of hardy plank and Mr. Wickstrum 
explained that this was for renovation of the restrooms at Lake Casitas. 
 
 On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Bergen, the bills 
were approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: Kaiser 
 
7. Recommend acceptance of the fiscal year 2014-2015 Comprehensive 

Annual Financial Report.      APPROVED 
 
 Paul Kaymark presented the 2014-2015 Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report discussing the new GASBY requirements regarding pension liabilities and 
a new accounting provision for estimating the value of the inventory in the lake.  
Mr. Kaymark stated this is an unmodified and clean opinion; there are no internal 
control or deficiency issues.  He also informed the board that we are one of only 
a few agencies who can accept the cost from CalPERS and it not be turned into 
a deficit because this board was steady with their pension plan at 2% and 60 and 
did not modify it.  Our package and plan is a manageable liability. 
 
 On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Hicks and passed, 
the 2014-2015 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report was approved by the 
following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: Kaiser 
 
8. Recommend approval of the proposal to set reserves for 2015/2016. 
          APPROVED 
 
 On the motion of Director Bergen, seconded by Director Hicks, the above 
recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: Kaiser 
 
9. Resolution awarding a contract to complete the Lake Casitas Water 

Adventure Playground Repairs, Specification 15-385 to Draper 
Construction of Somis, California in the amount of $45,250. 

          ADOPTED 
   

The resolution was offered by Director Hicks, seconded by Director 
Bergen and adopted by the following roll call vote: 



 3 

 
AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly 

  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: Kaiser 
 
  Resolution is numbered 16- 
 
10. Recommend acceptance of the proposal and entering into an agreement 

with Mainstreet Architects + Planners, Inc. in an amount not to exceed 
$56,590 for design services for the District Office remodel. APPROVED 

   
 On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Bergen, the above 
recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: Kaiser 
 
11. Recommend approval of a purchase order to ERS Industrial Services, Inc. 

in the amount of $35,153.34 for the removal, cleaning and reinstallation of 
media in pressure filter #4.      APPROVED 

 
 On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Bergen, the above 
recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: Kaiser 
 
12. Recommend approval of the proposed committee assignments and 

approvals of authorized meetings for board attendance. APPROVED 
 
 On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Hicks the above 
recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: Kaiser 
 
13. Information Items: 
 

a. Finance Committee Minutes 
b. Investment Report. 
 
The Clerk of the Board reported a correction on the attendees for the 

Finance Committee minutes.  The correct attendees were Directors Kaiser and 
Bergen. 

 
On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Word, the 

information items as modified were approved by the following roll call vote: 



 4 

 
AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly 

  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: Kaiser 

 
14. Adjournment  
 
 Director Baggerly adjourned the meeting at 3:37 p.m. 
 
 
      __________________________ 
      James W. Word, Secretary 
 



U:\Management\Agendas\Board meetings\2016\02-10-16\Slury Seal Award Purchase Order Memo 15-384.doc 

 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVEN WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM: ANDY BENITEZ, ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN 

SUBJECT: AWARD PURCHASE ORDER FOR LCRA ROADS MAINTENANCE, TYPE II 
SLURRY SEAL OF THE MAIN ENTRANCE AREA BETWEEN CAMPGROUND 
B TO THE EAST AND ROBLES CANAL BRIDGE ABUTMENT ADJACENT TO 
CAMPGROUND C TO THE WEST - SPECIFICATION 15-384. 

DATE: 2/1/2016 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors award a purchase order contract to the lowest 
responsive and responsible bidder for the LCRA Main Entrance area Slurry Seal, Specification 
15-384 to Roy Allan Slurry Seal, Inc. in the amount of $ 30,625.00. 
 
It is further recommended that the President of the board execute the agreement for said work 
and the Board authorize staff to proceed with the administration of the project. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
This project will repair the portions of the main road surfaces from Camp B to the Canal Bridge 
These areas will receive a Type II Slurry Seal, in the same fashion to the one previously 
applied to the entry-gate area. 
 
The project was advertised on December 29, 2015 at the District’s Website and F.W.Dodge. 
Nine (9) firms were sent invitations to participate electronically. Four firms submitted bids. 
 
  Firm                 Bid Amount        Lowest Apparent Bidder 
 
      a)  Quality Paving, Ventura                                          Not submitted                 - - - - - - - -  
      b)  J & H Engineering, Inc., Camarillo                          Not submitted                 - - - - - - - - 
      c)  BC Rincon Construction, Fillmore                           Not submitted                 - - - - - - - - 
      d)  Mission Paving & Sealing, Irwindale                      $ 68,125.00                     - - - - - - - - 
      e)  Pavement Coatings Co., Mira Loma                       Not submitted                 - - - - - - - - 
      f)  Roy Allan Slurry Seal, Inc., Santa Fe Springs         $ 30,625.00                   $ 30,625.00 
      g) American Asphalt South, Inc., Fontana                   $ 46,875.00                    - - - - - - - - 
      h) Western Oil Spreading Services Inc., Santa Paula  Not submitted                 - - - - - - - - 
      i)  Wheeler Paving Inc., Riverside                                 $ 41,250.00                    - - - - - - - - 
 
 



U:\Management\Agendas\Board meetings\2016\02-10-16\Slury Seal Award Purchase Order Memo 15-384.doc 

Roy Allan Slurry Seal Inc. has a Contractor’s license in good standing and has performed past 
slurry and crack sealing at the Marion R. Walker Treatment Plant and as Sub-Contractor at 
LCRA. The Engineer’s estimate was $ 45,000.00.  
 
BUDGET 
 
Funding for this project is included in the FY 2015-16 Capital Budget.  At this time, written 
confirmation for the Grant funding from USBR has not been received. Should USBR written 
confirmation be received, Casitas will consider a Change Order for additional slurry seal work. 
 









































CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVEN WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM: LINDSAY CAO, CIVIL ENGINEER 

SUBJECT: PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE AND AWARD 
–HIGH PRESSURE PORTION OF RINCON MAIN CONDITION 
ASSESSMENT AND CONCEPTUAL DESIGN 

DATE: 2/1/2016 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors accept the proposal and enter into a 
purchase order agreement to perform engineering services with Water Works 
Engineers in the amount of $92,171.00.   
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The District’s high pressure portion of the Rincon main has experienced water breaks 
previously. In order to meet the District’s objectives of risk reduction and reliability 
enhancement for the system, Water Works Engineers will perform field investigations, 
pipeline condition assessment and analysis, transient pressure study and analysis, and 
provide a conceptual design technical memorandum based on study and analyses 
results.     
 
An essential element in Rincon scope includes a transient pressure analysis. This 
analytical tool can be applied in Ventura Avenue No.1 Pump Plant Surge Study project; 
therefore, the District requested Water Works Engineer to perform a transient analysis 
for Ventura Avenue No.1 Pump Plant Surge Study project. The results of the analysis 
may establish future surge protection strategies necessary for the pump station and its 
distribution system. 
  
Request for qualifications was advertised on the District’s web site, and seven firms 
submitted Statement of Qualifications. After an initial review, HDR, Water Works 
Engineers and Hasan Consultants were selected as the top to be interviewed. After 
further review, Water Works was selected because: 1) they demonstrated the greatest 
understanding of the project by proposing V&A Consulting Engineers for a transient 
pressure study and analysis; and, 2) they provide the most complete scope to reach the 
District goals of pipe condition assessment and future recommendation. Staff 
negotiated with Water Works Engineers to render a scope that is close to the current 



budget. 
     
PROPOSAL RESULTS: 
 

High Pressure Portion of Rincon Main   $ 74,796 
Ventura Avenue No.1 Pump Plant Surge Analyses $ 17,376 
        $ 92,171 

 
The FY 2015-16 Budget allocated $69,809 for High Pressure Portion of Rincon Main, 
and the proposed fee is 7% over budget.  The FY 2015-16 Budget allocated $100,000 
for Ventura Avenue Pump Plant No.1 Surge Study, the proposed fees are within the 
budget.   
 
G:\engr.wks\rfp\Rincon_RepairReplaceHighPressurePortion  
 



1 

 

MEMORANDUM 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

From: Steven E. Wickstrum, General Manager 

RE: Request for Change Order – Appraisal Report – Bruce W. Hull & Associates, Inc. 

Date:  February 5, 2016 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors consider and approve the request for a cost 
adjustment of $25,000, with no further allowance for cost adjustments. 

BACKGROUND: 
 
On September 9, 2015, the Board of Directors approved a purchase order to Bruce W. Hull & 
Associates, Inc. for a fee not to exceed $55,000 to perform all tasks in accordance with the 
Appraiser/Consultation Proposal (August 28, 2015) related to the acquisition of Golden State 
Water Company’s Ojai system.  A copy of the proposal is attached to this memorandum.  By 
the attached memorandum dated January 25, 2016, Mr. Hull has requested a $25,000 cost 
adjustment to the purchase order due to unforeseen work and underestimated hours to 
prepare the appraisal. 
 
 
 



MEMORANDUM 

 

 

DATE:  January 25, 2016 

TO:   Steve Wickstrum General Manager, Casitas Water District 

FROM:  Bruce W. Hull, MAI, Bruce W. Hull & Associates, Inc. 

SUBJECT: Purchase Order No. 18951 

 

The purpose of this memorandum is to summarize the current status of the Appraisal Report that is 
being prepared for the potential Golden State Water acquisition. 

It has become apparent that the hours that I have estimated for the preparation and completion of the 
appraisal report was significantly underestimated. 

As I mentioned to you on a phone call January 22, 2015 I believe that the report should be delivered 
within the next two weeks, if not earlier. I would also like to summarize the hours/billings that have 
been expended to date on this assignment.  

Briefly, we began working on this assignment in September, 2015. Purchase Order No. 18961 was issued 
for an amount of $55,000. To date the following has been billed to this Purchase Order. 

October, 2015  $13,450 

November, 2015 $21,050 

December, 2015 $16,350 

TOTAL   $50,850 

Thus far, in January of 2016 Bruce W. Hull has spent 40 hours while Wayne Lusvardi has spent 45 hours 
on the assignment. This would calculate to the following 

 

Bruce W. Hull, MAI 

40 hours x $300 p/hour  =$12,000 

Wayne Lusvardi 

45 hours x $250 p/hour  =$11,250 

TOTAL     $23,250 

As one can see, that amount is currently $19,100 ($23,250 less amount remaining on PO of $4150) over 
the existing Purchase Order.  



 
We are currently in the process of completing a working draft and anticipate it being complete at the 
end of this week. Based on my past experience there are normally five drafts of the report before I feel 
it is sufficient quality to submit to the client. I am estimating that there may be an additional 45 hours 
for Bruce W. Hull and 55 hours for Wayne Lusvardi. This would result in the following calculation. 

 

Bruce W. Hull, MAI 

45 hours x $300 p/hour  $13,500 

Wayne Lusvardi 

55 hours x $250 p/hour  $13,750 

TOTAL    $27,250 

Adding the additional anticipated work hours to complete the appraisal ($27,250) to the already existing 
hours worked ($19,100) would result in $46,600. Obviously this is significantly higher than the original 
estimate that was provided in the proposal and accepted by Casitas Water District ($55,000). I would 
like to request that an adjustment of $25,000 be made to the Purchase Order and that any hours 
expended beyond that would be borne by Bruce Hull & AssociatesThe following represents reasons why 
this assignment and hours were underestimated. 

1. New sales that were discovered and necessary to confirm in January, 2018.  
2. Expansion of sales search outside of California which included the discovery of two sales 

transaction. After further investigation, neither one of the sales were utilized in this report. 
3. The lack of cooperation from Golden State Water. 
4. The review of Annual Reports for Golden state for the years 2005 through 2014. 
5. It was necessary to develop a sales and income approach that is unique to the valuation of a 

water companies. After reviewing a number of appraisal reports we believe those analysis were 
flawed. As a result this “new” analysis, which we believe meets Civil Code 1263.320 (a) and 
California Public Utility Code 2720 was considered. 

6. Consultation with Jeff Oderman in early January resulted in additional analysis. 
7. It is not uncommon for CPUC decisions, documents, and rulings on one water company to be 

several hundred pages long. While we utilized six sales in our analysis we analyzed many more. 
To date there are over 8,000 pages that been copied and read. 

8. We also will be meeting with Jeff Oderman after submitting a draft of the report. 



BRUCE W. HULL & ASSOCIATES INC. 
REAL ESTATE APPRAISERS & CONSULTANTS 
  
  
  
August 28, 2015 
  
Casitas Municipal Water District 
C/O Rutan and Tucker, LLP 
611 Anton Boulevard #1400 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 
  
Attention: Jeffrey M. Oderman, Esquire 
  
Reference:   APPRAISAL/CONSULTATION PROPOSAL 
  
Property/Location: Golden State Water Company, Ojai, California 
      
At your request, Bruce W. Hull & Associates, Inc., (“APPRAISER”) hereby submits to Casitas 
Municipal Water District (“CLIENT”) this appraisal proposal.  The purpose of this proposal is to 
provide a fee quotation and scope of work to prepare a summary appraisal of the above-listed 
Company’s (“COMPANY”) business and realty assets.  The APPRAISER understands that the 
purpose of the appraisal is to estimate the Fair Market Value of the above, subject to the 
definition as cited in California Code of Civil Procedure 1263.320 to 330.  The intended use of 
the appraisal report is acquisition of the Company via Eminent Domain. 
  
APPRAISER is prepared to undertake this assignment and provide CLIENT with electronic 
copies of the completed appraisal reports, within 45 to 60 business days subject to the 
APPRAISER’S receipt of CLIENT'S signed authorization and submission of all requested data. 
The time period is a best estimate of the APPRAISER and is not a guarantee, although the 
APPRAISER agrees to use his best efforts to complete the assignment within the given time 
period. 
  
CLIENT agrees to pay APPRAISER, as fee for this report Not To Exceed $55,000 with invoices 
submitted on a monthly basis due payable upon receipt by the client. Report revisions or 
amendments, other than those required due to APPRAISER'S error, shall be prepared at an 
hourly rate of $300. CLIENT shall pay for any technical studies that are jointly determined to be 
necessary. APPRAISER’s maximum fee of $55,000 includes services of associate appraiser and 
secretarial support.   
  
In the event that CLIENT desires to cancel this authorization, written notice thereof shall be 
delivered to APPRAISER, and it is agreed that the APPRAISER shall receive compensation 
from CLIENT for all services rendered at the rate of $300.00 per hour for the time actually spent 
prior to receipt of such written cancellation notice, plus all costs advanced in connection with the 
appraisal. 
  

swickstrum
Highlight

swickstrum
Highlight



 
Jeffrey M. Oderman, Esq. 
Rutan & Tucker 
August 28, 2015 
Page 2. 
  
APPRAISER is willing to be a testimonial witness or witnesses in court if requested. If he is 
compelled to incur court costs, attorney's fees, or other out-of- pocket expenses in connection 
with court proceedings, such costs or expenses, together with APPRAISER'S hourly rate of 
$300.00 per hour, applicable for his professional services for study, preparation, testimony or 
travel, will be paid by the party (or parties) who acts to bring any suit requiring a judicial 
proceeding. 
  
The reports will be prepared in a Summary Appraisal Report, which is intended to comply with 
the reporting requirements set forth under Standards Rule 2-2(b) of the Uniform Standards of 
Professional Appraisal Practice (“USPAP”) January 1, 2014 for a Summary Appraisal Report. 
As such, it presents only summary discussions of the data, reasoning and analyses that were used 
in the appraisal process to develop the APPRAISER’S file. The depth of discussion contained in 
this report is specific to the needs of the CLIENT. The APPRAISER is not responsible for 
unauthorized uses of this report.  
  
The appraisal shall additionally comply with the intent of the Statements on Standards for 
Valuation Services for Valuation of a Business by the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants, the standards of the American Society of Appraisers, the Appraisal Qualifications 
Board of the Appraisal Foundation, the Appraisal Institute and the U.S. Small Business 
Administration for valuation of businesses with special purpose property.  
 
Scope of Work 
  
We propose the following scope of work to undertake the appraisal: 
  
1. Collect and review all public background information and data from the CPUC, California 
Board of Equalization (BOE), the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), California 
Department of Public Health, Zoning and General Plan of the City of Ojai, Golden State Water 
Company-Ojai Urban Water Management Plan 2010, COMPANY Annual Reports.  
2. Inventory COMPANY’s physical assets, water rights, and real property holdings, including 
inventory of any physical assets not to be acquired. 
3. Prepare a description of COMPANY’s service area, customer base, water supply, imported 
water sources, historical water usage, environmental and health code compliance, any future 
capital improvements, and debt obligations. 
4. Compile historical net income data of COMPANY and comparable sales companies. 
5. Compile and review comparable sales transaction data of regulated investor-owned water 
companies, from the CPUC; and sales of unregulated water companies exempt from regulation 
by CPUC.  If necessary, expand sales search to other states to find recent voluntary sales of 
water companies. 
 



Jeffrey M. Oderman, Esq. 
Rutan & Tucker 
August 28, 2015 
Page 3. 
 
6. Based on the above, estimate the Reproduction Cost of COMPANY’s facilities and their 
depreciation. 
8.Based on the above, estimate the Fair Market Value of COMPANY’s business assets by the 
Sales Comparison Approach. 
9.Based on the above, estimate the Fair Market Value of COMPANY’s business assets by the 
Capitalization of Net Income Approach. 
10. Appraise the land, easement, and property holdings of COMPANY by the Sales Comparison 
Approach and, if applicable, by the Capitalization of Ground Rents, if land not included in sales 
price. 
11. Evaluate any indicated severance damages to any remainder properties not acquired by 
CLIENT. 
12. Prepare a draft and final consolidated appraisal report.  
 
Our fee includes an initial appraisal scoping conference with CLIENT and/or its legal counsel.  
  
It should also be noted that we propose not to re-inventory all of COMPANY’s facilities and 
rights of ways but shall rely on existing inventories by the CPUC and BOE.  
  
The estimate of Just Compensation shall be broken down as follows: 
   
Business value of the going concern (with or without land and intangibles as verified from 
comparable sales data) 
Property value of land, easements, licenses, permits, municipal franchises, water rights (if not 
included in sales price).  
Equipment and appurtenances (if not included in sales price) 
Intangibles including contracts, leases, and goodwill, if applicable (if not included in sales price). 
Severance damages, if any. 
  
Sub-Consultants 
  
Please advise if CLIENT requires retention of an independent forensic accountant to verify net 
income, cost estimating engineer to estimate depreciated value of physical improvements, or 
hydrologist to evaluate COMPANY’s water wells, water rights, and the safe yield of its wells 
within the Ojai Basin.  Said services of any sub-consultants are not included in this fee proposal.  
  
Qualifications 

Our qualifications to undertake this appraisal assignment have been previously forwarded to 
Rutan & Tucker under separate cover.   
 
 
 

swickstrum
Highlight



Jeffrey M. Oderman, Esq. 
Rutan & Tucker 
August 28, 2015 
Page 4. 
 
Due Diligence and Client Deliverables 
  
An appraisal should simulate the same amount of due diligence investigation of a likely, 
knowledgeable buyer for COMPANY. As such, we require CLIENT to provide us with 
condemnation title reports.  We understand that COMPANY is to be appraised at this time 
assuming its lands and facilities are free of any environmental contamination. As such no Phase 
1 Environmental Assessment reports will be required to be delivered to APPRAISER by 
CLIENT.   
  
Associates 
  
Wayne Lusvardi, whose qualifications have been previously forwarded to you, shall serve as 
associate appraiser on this assignment. His hourly rate will be billed at $250 per hour. Office 
staff and research will be based at a $40 hourly rate.  
  
Limiting Conditions 
  
The following limiting conditions will be included in the appraisal report: 
 
1. No responsibility is assumed for matters legal in nature; 
2. No opinion as to title is herewith rendered, and the property is appraised as though free and 
clear of all encumbrances and the title marketable; 
3. The factual data utilized in our report will be obtained from sources deemed to be reliable; 
however, no guarantee can be made as to their accuracy; 
4. No survey of the boundaries of the property will be prepared. All legal descriptions, areas, and 
dimensions furnished the APPRAISER are assumed to be correct; 
5. The distribution of the total valuation between land and improvements (if any), applies only in 
the matter of utilization stated in this report. Our reported market value is for the total property as 
appraised, and no attempt has been made to evaluate any fractional interest, should one exist. 
6. APPRAISER(s) are willing to be testimonial witnesses in court if requested.  
7. If all data requested of the CLIENT is not provided, appraiser shall include an additional 
limiting condition requiring our subsequent review of the items lacking. 
8. This proposal, or acceptance of this proposal, is not contingent upon, or related to, any 
anticipated value conclusions. APPRAISER'S fee will have been earned in full upon delivery of 
the completed report.  
9. Requesting valuation services by Bruce W. Hull & Associates, Inc., constitutes an agreement 
by the client/intended user that any damage or loss, whatever the cause or perceived cause, will 
only entitle the client/intended user, at most, to replacement of the physical report by Bruce W. 
Hull & Associates, Inc., provided such replacement is requested in writing and the date of 
valuation is no more than five years prior to the date of request.  
 



Jeffrey M. Oderman, Esq. 
Rutan & Tucker 
August 28, 2015 
Page 5. 
 
Except for such replacement, Bruce W. Hull & Associates accepts no warranty or liability for 
any incidental or consequential damages, perceived or otherwise, that may arise from this 
appraisal assignment or the resulting opinion of value. 
  
The laws of the State of California shall govern this APPRAISAL/CONSULTATION 
AGREEMENT. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be determined to be void or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect any 
other provision of this Agreement and all such other provisions shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
We thank you for the opportunity of presenting this proposal for your consideration. The terms 
and conditions of this Agreement shall remain valid for a 30-day period or unless otherwise 
agreed upon.  We understand that this proposal may be incorporated into a contract for 
consulting services prepared by CLIENT subject to mutual review and approval. The assignment 
will be commenced upon receipt in or office of the complete package and initial appraisal 
scoping session with legal counsel. Please feel free to contact our office if you have any 
questions. 
  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
  
BRUCE W. HULL & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
  

Bruce W. Hull, MAI 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1056 East Meta Street, Suite 204, Ventura, California  
Telephone: (805) 641-3275 
Facsimile: (805) 641-3278 

Electronic Mail: bhull.mai@gmail.com  

mailto:bhull.mai@gmail.com


1 

 

MEMORANDUM 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

TO:   Board of Directors 

From:  Steven E. Wickstrum, General Manager 

RE:  Los Angeles Candidature Questionnaire Letter 

Date:   February 2, 2015 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors direct the General Manager to sign the 
questionnaire letter and forward the letter to the Los Angeles 2024 Olympic Exploratory 
Committee. 

BACKGROUND: 
 
In October 2014, Casitas was contacted by the Los Angeles 2024 Olympic Exploratory 
Committee to determine if the District had any interest in providing Lake Casitas as the venue 
for the Olympic Rowing events, as it had in 1984.  The District responded with a letter to offer 
support to the Committee.  In November 2015, staff met with key representatives of the 
Committee to perform a field inspection of Lake Casitas.  There appeared to be great 
enthusiasm for the Lake Casitas venue with the recognition by LA24 representatives that 
water levels in Lake Casitas are dependent on local rainfall and runoff, and that lower water 
levels could render the venue to be insufficient for the 2024 rowing event. 
 
In January 2016, Mr. Brian Nelson, lead counsel for the Committee requested a that the 
District issue a guarantee letter that would be a part of the final LA 24 bid submittal to the 
International Olympic Committee.  A copy of the draft letter has been provided by Mr. Nelson 
and is attached for the review the Casitas Board.  The initial concern with the letter was the 
provision of the guarantee, second bullet, that the District will take all the necessary 
measures, and further that there would be any implied or otherwise assumed guarantee for a 
condition that is beyond the control and financial responsibility for the staging of Lake 
Casitas.  As stated to Mr. Nelson, the District cannot guarantee in 2016 that Lake Casitas 
would have water levels sufficient to meet the requirements of the 2024 rowing event.  The 
concern was addressed by the addition of the paragraph that follows the bulleted guarantees.  
The draft letter has been reviewed by the Recreation Committee and District counsel. 
 
If there are any questions in this regard, please do not hesitate to ask me. 











 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Recreation Committee 

 
DATE:   February 3, 2016 
TO:        Board of Directors 
FROM:   General Manager, Steven E. Wickstrum 
Re:   Committee Meeting of February 2, 2016 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Bill Hicks 
Director Jim Word  

 Steve Wickstrum, General Manager  
 Carol Belser, Park Services Manager  
 Suzi Taylor, Park Services Officer IV  

 Public: Dee Bennett 
  

2. Public comments.   
Dee Bennett reported that minor damage to rowing sculls occurred during the weekend wind storm. 
 

3. Board/Management Comments. 
Carol Belser reported (1) that there was several fallen tree limbs and one damaged oak tree in the Park, 
no damage to persons or property, and (2) the Department of Fish and Wildlife had made a trout plant 
at Lake Casitas in January. 

 
4. Review of the November and December Recreation Reports. 

Reports were reviewed and recommended to move forward to the Board as information. 
 

5. Discussion regarding setting agendas on the following Recreation priorities: 
a) Water Park Improvements 
b) Recreation Master Planning 
c) Wastewater Improvements 
d) Financial Strategy for Capital Improvements 
e) Open Space Memorandum of Understanding 
f) Olympics Preparation.  

The above priorities were recognized as items to be priorities for the Recreation Area during the next 
year and that the priorities would be brought to the Committee for advisory discussion.  The Committee 
briefly discussed the relevance of each of these priorities. 

 
6. Discussion regarding a proposed LA24 Olympics commitment letter. 

The Committee reviewed a request of Casitas by the LA24 Olympic Committee to provide certain 
guarantees.  The initial letter was revised to consider conditions preceding conditions that cannot be 
guaranteed by the District.  This item will be moved to the Board of Directors for consideration of 
signing. 
 

7. Review of Incidents and Comments. 



 2 

Suzi Taylor summarized the incidents occurring at the LCRA that will appear in summary form in the 
monthly Recreation Reports. 
 



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Water Resources Committee 

 
DATE:    January 26, 2016 
TO:       Board of Directors 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
Re:    Water Resources Committee Meeting of January 26, 2016, 9:30 AM 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Pete Kaiser, Alternate 
 General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 Resources Manager, Ron Merckling  
  
Due to the lack of a committee quorum, the Water Resources Committee meeting was cancelled. 



 
 

1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 

 
DATE:  December 29, 2015  
 
TO:  Recreation Committee  
 
FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
   
SUBJECT: Recreation Area Monthly Report for November 2015  
 
Visitation Numbers 
 
The following is a comparison of visitations* for November 2015:   
 

 Nov. 2015 Nov. 2014 October 2015 
Visitor Days 27,136 26,684 44,478 
Camps 3,076 3,848 5,757 
Cars 6,784 7,171 11,121 
Boats 68 147 127 
Kayaks & Canoes 49 7 7 

 
Fiscal Year to Date Visitation 

2014/2015 269,884 
2015/2016 255,358 
% Change -5.382 

 
*The formulas for calculating the above attendance figures derived from the daily cash reports are as follows:   
Visitor Days = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + campsites 
occupied +extra vehicles X 4 
Camps = Campsites occupied + extra vehicles 
Cars = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + campsites 
occupied + extra vehicles 
Boats = Daily boats + overnight boats + annual decals + replacement decals 
Kayaks & Canoes = Daily kayaks and canoes + overnight kayaks and canoes + annual kayaks and canoes 
 

Boating 
There were three cables sold for new inspections, two vessels were re-inspected and a total of 253   
vessels were retagged.  Four vessels failed the first inspection in November 2015. With the historic 
drought and receding water levels, the launch ramp conditions are seriously impacted but staff  have 
been able to keep the ramp area in use.   
 
Operations 
The Tri-Valley cross country competition was held at Lake Casitas on November 5, with 1000 runners 
participating and approximately 300 spectators. Lake Casitas has been identified as a possible venue 
for the 2024 Olympics for rowing and on November 13 members of the committee visited Lake Casitas 
to investigate Casitas’ possibilities.  The initial comments are encouraging.  They believe Lake Casitas 
will be their top choice if Los Angeles hosts the 2024 Olympics. The General Manager is in 
communication with the team and corresponds to their inquiries. 



 
 

2 

The Water Adventure playground structure has been closed since mid-August due to a leak, the source 
of which had not been determined as of November 2015. 
 
Incidents  
Incidents in the Recreation Area for the month of November 2015 that include assistance from outside 
services: a warrant arrest for an outstanding DUI and a medical involving a patient with a seizure.  
 
Revenue Reporting 
The 2015 unaudited monthly figures below available to date illustrate all Lake Casitas Recreation 
Area’s revenue collected in the respective month (operations, concessions, Water Adventure, etc.) per 
the District’s Financial Summary generated by the Finance Manager.    
 

LCRA TOTAL REVENUE 
    

 
 

$0.00
$100,000.00
$200,000.00
$300,000.00
$400,000.00
$500,000.00
$600,000.00
$700,000.00
$800,000.00

July
Sept

Nov Jan
March May

FY 14/15
FY 15/16

 



 
 

1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 

 
DATE:  January 5, 2015  
 
TO:  Recreation Committee  
 
FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
   
SUBJECT: Recreation Area Monthly Report for December 2015  
 
 
Visitation Numbers 
 
The following is a comparison of visitations* for December 2015:   
 

 Dec. 2015 Dec. 2014 Nov. 2015 
Visitor Days 21,468 18,308 27,136 
Camps 1,907 1,922 3,076 
Cars 5,367 4,577 6,784 
Boats 103 104 68 
Kayaks & Canoes 1 44 49 

 
Fiscal Year to Date Visitation 

2014/2015 288,192 
2015/2016 276,826 
% Change -3.944 

 
*The formulas for calculating the above attendance figures derived from the daily cash reports are as follows:   
Visitor Days = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + campsites 
occupied +extra vehicles X 4 
Camps = Campsites occupied + extra vehicles 
Cars = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + campsites 
occupied + extra vehicles 
Boats = Daily boats + overnight boats + annual decals + replacement decals 
Kayaks & Canoes = Daily kayaks and canoes + overnight kayaks and canoes + annual kayaks and canoes 
 

Boating 
There were three cables sold for new inspections, fourteen vessels were re-inspected and a total of 270 
vessels were retagged.  Eight vessels failed the first inspection in December 2015. With the historic 
drought and receding water levels, the launch ramp conditions are seriously impacted, but staff  have 
been able to keep the ramp area in use through December.    
 
Operations 
The District purchased $30,000 of rainbow trout that were delivered December 2 and 17. Also the 
Department of Fish and Wildlife delivered 1,200 pounds of rainbow trout on December 7. 
 
The source of the leak in the Water Adventure playground structure has been identified.  The 
Engineering Department prepared and sent out a Request for Proposal in December 2015 for contracted 
repairs.  



 
 

2 

 
Incidents  
Incidents in the Recreation Area for the month of December 2015 that include assistance from outside 
services: Verbal Disturbance, a Domestic and a Trespass. 
 
Revenue Reporting 
The 2015 unaudited monthly figures below available to date illustrate all Lake Casitas Recreation 
Area’s revenue collected in the respective month (operations, concessions, Water Adventure, etc.) per 
the District’s Financial Summary generated by the Finance Manager.    
 

LCRA TOTAL REVENUE 
    

$0.00
$100,000.00
$200,000.00
$300,000.00
$400,000.00
$500,000.00
$600,000.00
$700,000.00
$800,000.00

July
Sept

Nov Jan
March May

FY 14/15
FY 15/16

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Consumption Report

Water Sales FY 2015-2016 (Acre-Feet)         Month to Date

2015 / 2016 2014 / 2015

Classification Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Total Total

AD Ag-Domestic 422 517 547 509 464 403 0 0 0 0 0 0 2862 2598

AG Ag 298 375 377 353 298 270 0 0 0 0 0 0 1971 2175

C Commercial 58 83 81 60 39 27 0 0 0 0 0 0 348 352

DI Interdepartmental 8 8 8 7 7 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 43 82

F fire 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

I Industrial 1 2 2 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 17

OT Other 17 13 13 13 14 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 80 111

R Residential 106 122 127 103 103 95 0 0 0 0 0 0 656 837

RS - P Resale Pumped 50 81 172 150 131 131 0 0 0 0 0 0 715 739

RS - G Resale Gravity 456 487 453 363 338 422 0 0 0 0 0 0 2519 2769

TE Temporary 6 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 20

Total 1,421 1689 1781 1559 1396 1364 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,210 9,700

Total 2014 / 2015 2286 1972 2317 1506 1187 432 483 688 1410 1283 1483 1601 N/A 16648

** July 2015 was the first month when all customers were on monthly billing.  July 2015 now reflects actual consumption for July.



Casitas Municipal Water District

CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) - Monthly Cost Analysis 

2015 / 2016

2/3/2016

Services Legal Labor Other Total

& Suplies Fees Expense Services Expenses

2011 / 2012 -289.50 42,560.00 11,098.37 0.00 53,368.87

2012 / 2013 831.82 223,462.77 14,836.68 0.00 239,131.27

2013 / 2014 29.89 91,878.06 3,835.65 0.00 95,743.60

2014 / 2015 0.00 68,457.10 0.00 0.00 68,457.10

July 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

August 0.00 1,022.00 0.00 0.00 1,022.00

September 0.00 2,140.00 0.00 0.00 2,140.00

October 0.00 21,424.00 0.00 0.00 21,424.00

November 0.00 24,356.00 0.00 0.00 24,356.00

December 0.00 16,494.00 440.42 0.00 16,934.42

January 0.00 4,150.00 0.00 0.00 4,150.00

Feburary 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

March 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

April 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

May 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

June 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Cost YTD 0.00 69,586.00 440.42 0.00 70,026.42

Total Project Cost 572.21 495,943.93 30,211.12 0.00 526,727.26

Prepared by dcollin 2/3/2016 Page 1



   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

02/02/16

 

Type of Date of Adjusted Current Rate of Date of % of Days to

Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Cost Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EAZM3 7/24/2023 $1,658,682 $1,722,396 2.380% 9/16/2014 8.90% 2692

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EEXPO 1/28/2021 $735,754 $735,007 1.990% 6/17/2015 3.80% 1796

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFNR4 11/18/2024 $809,304 $801,719 2.870% 11/18/2015 4.14% 3166

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 33133EFHV2 10/13/2022 $588,653 $580,690 2.200% 10/23/2015 3.00% 2411

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EED31 4/28/2025 $2,989,407 $2,960,610 2.800% 6/2/2015 3.80% 3326

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313381TA3 1/17/2023 $277,619 $283,270 2.240% 9/8/2014 1.46% 2505

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379EE5 6/14/2019 $1,372,221 $1,367,375 1.625% 10/3/2012 7.07% 1212

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133802D8 11/23/2022 $1,477,575 $1,485,371 2.400% 11/19/2014 7.68% 2451

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379RN1 12/27/2024 $978,364 $995,010 2.840% 6/18/2014 5.14% 3205

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 31338OA98 8/14/2024 $126,966 $131,007 2.500% 7/3/2014 0.68% 3072

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 31338OS73 10/11/2022 $378,227 $378,473 2.430% 8/11/2014 1.96% 2409

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XFKF2 6/11/2021 $679,254 $675,668 5.625% 1/16/2013 3.49% 1929

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3134G43A4 10/30/2024 $849,441 $879,717 2.500% 7/3/2014 4.55% 3148

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EADB2 1/13/2022 $678,805 $688,236 2.375% 9/8/2014 3.56% 2141

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3134G34R8 7/23/2021 $513,841 $517,088 2.000% 12/2/2014 2.67% 1971

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABA60 11/17/2017 $1,066,095 $1,075,290 5.125% 1/3/2012 5.56% 645

*TB Federal National Assn 3136G0K67 4/9/2021 $192,000 $192,380 2.000% 12/2/2014 0.99% 1867

*TB Federal National Assn 3135G0ES80 11/15/2016 $685,343 $686,866 1.375% 3/12/2012 3.55% 283

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 7/15/2018 $1,148,487 $1,145,977 1.375% 7/6/2010 5.92% 883

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF4 1/15/2020 $1,133,238 $1,153,745 1.375% 11/18/2015 5.96% 1423

*TB US Treasury Note 912828WE6 11/15/2023 $769,069 $818,076 2.750% 12/13/2013 4.23% 2803

Accrued Interest $72,906

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $19,108,343 $19,346,877 99.98%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506) $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $447 $447 0.32% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,845 $2,845 0.42% Estimated 0.01%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $19,111,635 $19,350,169 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $19,116,154 $19,354,717

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $18,214,378 $18,531,588

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST. $3,485,570 $3,485,570

CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $43,489 $43,489 0.01%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $22,640,694 $22,879,228

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $24,692,691 $25,009,901

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit

*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 

** Local Agency Investment Fund 

*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.

**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 

and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.

All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 

investment policy.


	2-10-16 Agenda
	1-27-16 Min
	Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District
	Board Meeting Held
	January 27, 2016

	Slury Seal Award Purchase Order Memo 15-384
	Bills
	accept pipe_Assessment proposal (1)
	Hull Cost Adjustment Memo 02 05 2016
	MEMORANDUM

	Cost Extra Memo 1 25 2016
	Hull GSWC Appraisal Proposal 08 28 2015
	UBRUCE W. HULL & ASSOCIATES INC.

	Casitas Memo on LA 24 Candidature Questionaire Letter 02 02 2016
	MEMORANDUM

	Draft Ltr LA 2024
	Rec Minutes 02 02 2016
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM:   General Manager, Steven E. Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	Water Res Minutes 01 26 2016
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	LCRA 11Nov.2015
	LCRA 12Dec.2015
	Consumption 2015 - 2016
	CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Costs 2015-2016
	Investment Report 02-02-16

